MARYLAND HiSTORiICAL TRUST ADDENDUM SHEET Property Name: Oak Hill
INTERCOUNTY CONNECTOR PROJECT Survey No.: M:15-53 (PACS D4.2)

Property Address 16400 Oak Hill Road, Silver Spring, Montgomery County, Maryland
Owner Name/Address L.N. and G.J. Thompson, 16400 Oak Hill Road, Silver Spring, MD 20905
Year Built_circa 1860

Description:

Oak Hill, constructed circa 1860, was previously surveyed by the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission
(M-NCPPC) in 1979. The main house is currently undergoing restoration, including replacement of the windows and sections
of the wood siding. The house is otherwise unaltered from its condition and appearance of the time of the previous survey.
In addition to the main house and fieldstone apple storage cellar described in the previous survey form, Oak Hill has seven
additional outbuildings. Also, photographs of the property in the M-NCPPC files indicate an additional frame outbuilding was
once located a short distance north of the house, however, the foundation is now the only extant portion of this outbuilding.

The first outbuilding is a 1-story, side-gable frame shed with a metal roof and a central cupola. The shed has a poured
concrete foundation and is located northwest of the house and the apple storage cellar. The second outbuilding is a 1-story
concrete stable with a metal shed roof and exposed roof rafters. The stable is located northwest of the house, apple storage
cellar, and shed. The third outbuilding, a corn crib, has a concrete foundation and roof is missing. it is located northwest
of the house, apple storage cellar and shed, and west of the stable. The fourth outbuilding is a 1-story frame pavilion with
ametal gable roof. The pavilion covers a well, and has a concrete foundation. It is located northwest of the house and apple
storage cellar, north of the shed, and east of the stable and corn crib. The fifth outbuilding is a 2'.-story frame barn with
a metal gambrel roof and a concrete foundation. The barn has an addition constructed in the 1970s. The bam is located
north of the house and apple storage cellar, northeast of the shed, and east of the stable, corn crib and pavilion. The sixth
outbuilding is a small brick structure which provides exterior access to the fieldstone apple storage cellar. it has a metal shed
roof and is located northest of the house, south of the barn, and southest of the shed, stable, corn crib, and pavilion. The
seventh outbuilding, a modern trailer, is located northwest of the house and the other outbuildings.

National Register Evaiuation:

Constructed circa 1860, Oak Hill was previously surveyed by the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission
(M-NCPPC) in 1979. The property is eligible under Criterion C, as a good example of a vernacular farm complex, including
the main house and several agricultural outbuildings. Despite some alterations to the main house, the structure retains
integrity of form and material, and its setting remains intact, despite intense development of the surrounding community.
The property is not eligible under Criterion A, as research conducted indicates no association with any historic events or
trends significant in the development of national, state or local history. Historic research indicates that the property has no
association with persons who have made specific contributions to history, and therefore, it does not meet Criterion B. In
addition, it has no known potential to yield important information, and therefore, does not meet Criterion D.

Verbai Boundary Description and Justification:

The National Register boundaries of Oak Hill follow the current property lines of 16400 Oak Hill Road (Tax Map KS 123,
Lot/Block #P330). This 27.28 hectare (67.41 acre) parcel is bounded on the north, south and west by adjacent tax parcels,
and on the east by Oak Hill Road. The boundary includes the main house, six contributing outbuildings, which date to the
period of significance of circa 1860 - 1930. One non-contributing structure is located within the boundary, a modern trailer.
According to deed research, the property was originally part of a 37.23 hectare (92-acre) parcel which was acquired by
Frederick Stabler in 1860. Several smallertracts were sold during the twentieth century, resuiting the the current parcel. The
property is now bounded to the north, south and east by residential development, and on the east by Oak Hill Road.

MHT CONCURRENCE:
Eiigibiiity _X recommended not recommended
Criteria A B _XC D Considerations A B C D E F G None
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Name: Oak Hill

Planning Area/Site Number: 15/53 3. M=NCPPC Atlas Reference: Map 17
Coordinate H-6
Address: 16400 Oak Hill R4.
Silver Spring, Md4d.
Classification Summary

Category__bullding Previous Survey Recording MNCPFPC
Ownership _private Title and Date: Historlc 3ites Inventory
Public Acquisition N/A 1976
Status  occupied
Accessible  no Federal State x  County x Local
Present use agriculture; private T
resldence
Dates C. 1864 7. Original Owner: Frederick Stabler

Apparent Condition

a, good b, altered ¢, original site

Descrintion: This five bay by five bay, two and a half story frame house
faces south. The house has white clapboard interior walls. The south
(front) porch has a flat roof supported by four square posts. There 1s a
porte-cochere on the east elevation. There 1s a glass enclosed shed-roofed
porch on the east elevation. There are six-over-six double-hung windows.
At the southeast corner of the east elevation there is a bay window with
four-over-four windows. There are several north additlions with shed roofs.
The intersecting gable roofs are covered by green ralsed seam metal.

Significance: Oak Hill is an example of a prosperous medlum-sized Quaker
farm, such as once dotted this section of Montgomery County.

92 acres of this tract, originally part of "Snowden's Manor Enlarged’,
was deeded to Frederick Stabler by his parents in 1860. Frederick married
Martha Brooke of Willow Grove, also a member of an established Montgomery
County family, and they settled on theilr new farm. The Oak Hill farm house
is believed to have been built around 1865 next to an old log cabin.

Frederick sold the property to his son Caleb in 1895, and 13 years
later Caleb sold it for $7,300. Two years later Herbert E. Thompson bought
Oak Hill, thus returning the property to the family that had owned 1t before
the Stablers. The Thompson family still owns it today.

The present owner says that Oak Hill was one of the first totally
electric farms in the country, drawing visitors from up and down the East
coast, in the 1920s. The name Oak Hill comes from a huge oak tree which
stands behind the house. The tree stands some 70' with a breadth of 100'
and was estimated by forestry officials to be some 350 years old.

Candy Reed - Arch. Description
Researcher and date researched:; Donald M. Leavitt = June 1979

Compiler: Eileen McGuckilan 13. Date Compiled: Sept. 1979 1lk4. Designation
Approval
15, Acreage: 71.632 acres



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST

M: 15/53
MAGI#

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

TEINAME

HISTORIC Oak Hill

AND/OR COMMON

EALOCATION
- STREET & NUMBER 16400 Oak Hill Road

CITY. TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Silver Sporing — VICINITY OF 8
STATE COUNTY
Maryland Montgomery
[EJ CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT __PUBLIC Xoccurien _XAGRICULTURE __MUSEUM
X BUILDINGI(S) X PRIVATE —_UNOCCUPIED __COMMERCIAL __PARK
__STRUCTURE __BOTH _WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL X PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT __RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT __INPROCESS —~YES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED __YES: UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
X_NO __MILITARY __OTHER

EY OWNER OF PROPERTY

NAM
®  Larry N. Thompson

Telephone #: 421-9215

STREET & NUMBER

16400 0Oak Hill Road

CITY. TOWN sTaTE , zip code
Silver Spring ___ VICINITY OF Marvland 20904
- JHILOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION Liber #: 3983
: COURTHOUSE. Folio #: 206

REGISTRY OF DEEDSETC.2ont gomery County Courthouse

STREET & NUMBER

CITY, TOWN STATE
_ Rockville Marvland 20890
) REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
M-NCPPC Inventory of Historical Sites
DATE

1976 __FEDERAL _XSTATE XCOUNTY __LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
survey RECORDS  Pgark Historian's Office

CITY. TOWN
Rockville

STATE

Maryvland 20855
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DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED —UNALTERED X ORIGINAL SITE
XGoob __RUINS X ALTERED __MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This five bay by five bay, two and a half story frame house faces
south.

Bullt on fieldstone foundations, the house has white clapboarding.
The south (front) vorch has a flat roof supported by four sgquare posts.
The south (front) door is wooden paneled, 1t is flanked by three light
sidelights and is surmounted by a four light transom. On the east eleva-
tion a gable roof extends out across the driveway. Two square wooden
posts on formstone bases support the roof and create a porte-cochere,
North of the porte-cochere on the east elevation is a glass enclosed porch
with a shed roof. There is a glass and wooden paneled door on the east
elevation.

There are six-over-six double-hung windows flanked by green wooden
paneled shutters. The west two bays of the south elevation project forward
from that elevation. The windows in that section extend down to the porch
floor., There is a one story bay window at the southeast corner of the
east elevation with four-over-four double-hung windows. On the west
elevation at the first level, there is a modern picture window flanked by
four-over-four double-hung windows. There are two six-light casement
windows in the east gable and one round-headed six-over-six double-hung
window in the south gable,

The intersecting gable roof has green raised seam metal covering.
There are several one and two story lean-~to additions on the north eleva=-
tion, These have shed roofs and are also covered by green raised seam
metal., The cornice line is boxed and returned. There are two interior
chimneys on the north and east elevation.

A fieldstone apple storage bin is set into a small mound of earth
east of the house and opposite the east door.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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€l SIGNIFICANCE
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC —COMMUNITY PLANNING _LANDStAPE ARC{'HTE__CTUREI __RELIGION
—1400-1499 _ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —_CONSERVATION —LAW __SCIENCE
—1500-15699 }_(_AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE : —-SCULPTURE
__1600-1699 —ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILITARY __SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 _ART __ENGINEERING —MusIC __THEATER
X_‘IBOO»ISQQ —_COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT __PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS __INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)

_INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES C. 186 5’ BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Oak Hill is an example of a medium-sized Quaker farm,
such as once dotted this section of Montgomery County.

The land upon which Oak Hill stands was originally deeded to
Richard Snowden, Jr. the Anne Arundel iron master, and was considered to
be "some of the finest lands in the county",

Through subsequent generations this tract of land, known as
"Gnowden's Manor Enlarged", was divided up and sold. Caleb Stabler, a
member of one of the oldest Quaker families in the county, acquired much
of this land from William Thompson in the early 19th century. 1In 1860
he and his wife Ann deeded 92 acres to their son Frederick.2

Frederick married Yartha Brooke of Willow Grove, also a member of an
established lMontgomery County family, and they settled on their new farm.
The Oak Ei1ll farm house is believed to have been built around 1865 next
to an old log cabin. The 1860 census shows Frederick with $3,000 of real
estate, a figure that had increased to $8,700 by the 1870 census.
Assessments for 1869 reveal that Frederick owned $862 worth of personal
goods, inecluding live stock, watches, and one share of the Ashton Cattle
Scale, ’

Frederick sold the property to his son Caleb in 1896,5'and 13 years
later Caleb sold it for $7,3OO.6 Two years later Herbert E. Thompson
bought Oak Hill, thus returning the property to the family that had owned
it before the Stablers. The Thompson family still owns it today.

The present owner says that Oak Fill was one of the first totally
electric farms in the country, drawing visitors from up and down the East
coast, in the 1920's. The name Oak Hill comes from a huge oak tree which
stands behind the house. The tree stands some 70" with a breadth of 100!
and was estimated by forestry officials to be some 350 years old.
FOOTNOTES ¢
1. Scharf, Thomas J., Historv of Western Mar land, Vol. I, (Philadelphia:

Louis H. Everts, 1882), p. 649,
2. Land Records of Montgomery County, Md., JGH 8/99 (March 1, 1860).
3+ Roger Brooke Farquhar, 0l1d Homes and History of Montgomery Count
Maryland, (Washington, D.C,: Judd & Detweiler Inc., 1982 p. 235,
“. Assessment Records of Montgomery County, election distriect 5, 1869,
5. Land Records, op. cit., 53/161, (1/1/1%46).
. Ibid., 208/47, (1/4/1989).

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 71, 632 acres

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Located on the NW side of 0Oak Hill Rd, - .5 miles from Rt, 198,

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY

[S1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE Candy Reed
Donald M, Leavitt Architectural Descrintion
ORGANIZATION DATE
Sugarloaf Regional Trails June 1979
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
Box 87 926-4510
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Dickerson Maryland 20753

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST WORKSHEET
NOMINATION FORM
for the
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES, NATIONAL PARKS SERVICE
{1 NAME
C OMMON:
ANO/DR HISTORIC:
Oak Hill
{2. LOCATION
STREET ANC NUMBER:
16400 Oak Hill Road
CITY OR TOWN:
Silver Spring
STATE COUNTY:
Maryland Montgomery
{3. CLASSIFICATION ' i
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
v (Check Oney OWNERSHIP //STATUS TO THE PUBLIC
z O District #Building g/ub'ic Public Acquisition: dC)ccupicd Yes: .
o O Site 3 Structure Privote O In Process ] Unoccupied O Renncf.d
- O Object Both {J Being Considered [ Preservotion work E)Jm."”c"d
o in progress No
L PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)
e’ O Agriculturel O Government O Pork {3 Tronsportotion O Comments
o4 O Commerciol O Industriel B/anofe Residence ] Other (Specity)
. O Educotionol O Militory O Religious
V'D {J Entertoinment O Museum O Scientific
= 4. OWNER OF PROPERTY
-— OWNER'S NAME:
Herbert E. Thompson, Jr.
w STREET ANO NUMBER:
w 16400 o0ak Hill Road
v CITY OR TOWN: STATE:
Silver Spring __Maryland
{5, LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION T 3
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY DF DEEDS, ETC:
Montgomery County Courthouse
STREET ANO NUMBER:
CITY OR TOWN: STATE
Rockville Marvland
_Title Reference of Current Deed (Book & Pg. #):
[, REPRESENTATION [N EXISTING SURVEYS o
TITLE OF SURVEY:
None
ODATE OF SURVEY: O Federol [ Stote O County [ Locol
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:
STREET AND NUMBER:
CITY OR TOWN: STATE:
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[7. DESCRIPTION

CONDITION

; (Check One)
[0 Exceilent Good O] Feir [0 Deterioroted [ Ruins O Ynexposed

(Check One) (Check Ong)
é Altered O] Unoltered O] Moved Originol Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The house is a 2-1/2 story L-shaped frame

house with the main facade facing south and

a porch between.the legs of the L., There

are chimneys on the east end and in the center.
The front door has both transom and sidelights;
the gable windows are segmentally arched; all
windows are 6/6. The boxed cornice with returns
on the gable ends gives the house a classical
appearance. A two story rear wing has a lean-to
extending eastward; the east wall of the lean-to
is stone. Farquhar says that this win;Zof log

construction and predates the existing main house

block.
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INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

M.is-573
[8. SIGNIFICANCE
PERIOD (Check One or Mare es Appropriete)
{3J Pre-Columbion O 16th Century gy Century O 20th Century
{3 15th Century {J 17th Century 9th Century
SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Appliceble end Known) 1866
AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or Mare as Appropriete)
Abariginal ] Education ] Political T Urban Planning
O Prehistaric [ Engineering C] Religian/Phi. 1 Other (Specify)
[ Histeric T3 Industry losophy
T3 Agriculture 7] Invention {7} Science
] Architecture {3J Loandscape O Sculpture
O Art Architecture {3J Seciol/Humen-
] Commerce {73 Literature itarion
] Communicotions O] Militory ] Theater
] Censervotion O] Music ] Tronspartatian

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Frederick Stabler, son. of Caleb and Ann Stabler
of Drayton, acquired the land from -his father in
1866 when he married Martha Brooke of Willow
Grove. His father had bought the tract, part of
Snowden's Manor, enlarged in 1865, After 1910,
Herbert Thompson, descendent of the original
owners of the tract, purchased the land. The
rear wing, of log, probably predates the present

house; it is now the kitchen.
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3 [2. MAJIOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES
Farquhar, Roger Brooke. 0ld Homes and
History of Montgomery County, Maryland (1962)
p. 235
[ 10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA }
3 LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE CDDRDINATES LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COOROINATES
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LDCATING THE prorerTy |0 OEFINING THE CENTER PDINT DF A PROPERTY
% R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
F CDRNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
"f Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds
i NW o ] - [ ’ - [+] : - -] ’ -
i NE -] ] - -] ) -
i SE o ’ - o ’ -
. SW [-] 1] - -] . -
H APPROXIMATE ACREAGE DF NDMINATED PROPERTY: w
i ‘Acreage Justification: m
k3 ) m
z
v
-
. o
-IST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BDUNOARIES c
STATE: COUNTY
(9}
STATE: COUNTY: -{
. ‘ . -
STATE: CDUNTY: o
° Y z
STATE: COUNTY: w
11.. FORM PREPARED BY - °
NAME ANO TITLE:
Christopher Owens, Park Historian
ORGANIZATION DATE
M-NCPPC 1/23/73
STREET ANO NUMBER:
B787 Georgia Avenue
CITY OR TOWN: STATE
Silver Spring Maryland
12:, .. . .
~*JState Liaison Officer Review: (Office Use Only)
Significance of this property is:
National (7] State [ Local ([
Signature
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Caleb and Ann Stabler, of Drayton, was
born in 1831. In 1866 he married Martha
: R. Brooke of Willow Grove. They were estab-
- lished by Frederick’s father at the house shown.
Frederick received part of the tract of 126
acres, whieh lis father lad bought in 1865
at publie auetion for him and his brother Rob-
ert from the estate of William Thompson. A
map dated 1865 shows that Mrs. Thompson
', owned that place. Tle also was given, by a deed
dated May, 1860, two additional acres, parts of
Suowden’s Manor Enlarged, ‘‘for love and
affection, subject to an annuity of $44.00 to be
paid Caleb and Ann or the survivors of them,

it demanded in any current year.”’

The attractive farm house shown below is
located on a secoundary road. It is just to the
north and rear of Drayton, Edgewood, and Sun-
nyside, within a five minutes walk of them all.

Frederick Stabler was energetie, a suceessful

FREDERICK STABLER, the third son of

& crTrgs e
4

his neighbors and relatives, making himself
useful in many ways, insisting on keeping busy.

Children of Frederick and Martha, known as
‘‘Pattie,”’ were Tarleton B., who married Re-
becca Moore of Plainfield in 1892, For many
years he owned the 300-acre farm, Amersley,
near Norwood, which he operated with sucecess.
Upon his retirement they lived for a time on
the Ashton-Colesville highway #29, one nile
south of Ashton. Tarelton died in 1939.
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~—~farmer and a most valuable citizen, and a good
aeighbor. After lie had retired lie visited among ™
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| Oak Hill

Rose Stabler, the only daughter, married
Clarenee L. Gilpin in 1893. They went at once
to Della Brooke, near Brinklow, where Clarenece
was suceessful as an aggressive farmer. lIle was
fond of fox-hunting and was for a number of
years president of the Rockville Fair. The only
other child ot the Oakhill couple was (aleb
Stabler, the namesake of his grandfather, of
Drayton. Ile married Wilhelmina Laird in
1898, a daughter of the greatly beloved William
H. Laird, minister for many years after 1877,
of St. John’s Chureh at Olney. Caleb and
‘“‘Mena’ Stabler took over Oakhill farm tor
a few ycars, their parents moving to Drayton.

About 1910 the Caleb Stablers moved to Wil-
mington, Delaware, where he went into the bro-
kerage office of his brother-in-law, William Win-
der Laird. This firm of Laird and Company
handled muech of the security business ot the
Du Ponts, as Winder Laird married Mary Du

. Pont, a sister of Pierre S. Du Pont.

After both sons lhad left the old home farm
for other fields, the place wlhich then contained
seventy-two acres was sold to Herbert E.
Thompson, and thus returned to one of the
family who owned it before 1865. Thompson
has been successful as farmer and orchardist.
Now at an advanced age and well-to-do finan-
cially, he spends his winters in Florida in prac-
tical retirement.

The house, of substantial frame construetion,
was built by Frederick Stabler and his capable
wife after they were married. There is a small,
two-story log structure on the rear, which has
the appearance of being more than one hundred
years old. This was no doubt on the place when
the Stablers took over the farm, and was used
by them while building the new house.

As one enters the front hall from the front
porch, the dining room is on the right, and a
large parlor, necded for entertaining ‘‘The
Club,” is to the left. The dining room: with a
fireplace 1s in front of a large kitchen, which is
in the original log cabin now covered with sid-
ing. Above this is a bath and a bedroom. On
the second floor over the large parlor are two
bedrooms with one bedroom over the dining
room.

235




MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST ADDENDUM SHEET Property Name: Oak Hill
INTERCOUNTY CONNECTOR PROJECT Survey No.: M:15-53 (PACS D4.2)

Property Address 16400 Oak Hill Road, Silver Spring, Montgomery County, Maryland
Owner Name/Address_L.N. and G.J. Thompson, 16400 Oak Hill Road, Silver Spring, MD 20905
Year Built_circa 1860

Resource Sketch Map and Nationai Register Boundary Map:
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